# FY 22 UNIFIED TRANSPORTATION PLANNING WORK PROGRAM July 2021 - June 2022



Approval Date: May 13, 2021

## **Quarter 4 Report**

March 31, 2022 to June 30, 2022

Rhode Island Department of Administration Division of Statewide Planning 235 Promenade Street, Suite 230 Providence, RI 02908

## Table of Contents

## Part I: Status Reports

Project and Sp	pecial Task List1
Project 2.1:	Electronic State Transportation Improvement Program (E-STIP) Software Platform
Special Task 2	2d: FYY 2022-2031 State Transportation Improvement Program
Special Task 2	2e: Performance-Based Project Selection Criteria for Transportation Alternatives and Transit Projects   6
Special Task 3	3n: Congestion Management Annual Report7
Special Task 3	30: Congestion Management Plan/Process GIS StoryMaps9
Project 4.1:	High-Capacity Transit Project Development10
Project 4.2:	Transit Surveys & Data Acquisition11
Project 4.3:	Coordinated Public Transit- Human Services Transportation Plan Update 12
Project 5.1:	Freight and Goods Movement Plan Update with Statewide Truck Parking Study Appendix
Special Task :	5i: Freight Scans 16
Project 6.3:	Project Estimates for STIP Projects & Review of Current TAP Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects
Special Task (	61: Bicycle and Pedestrian Project STIP Application Guidebook for Municipalities
Project 7.4:	Land Use 2050: Rhode Island's Plan for Land Use and Transportation
Special Task '	7d: Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)
Project 9.1:	Vehicle Probe Transportation Dataset and Eastern Transportation Coalition25
Project 9.2:	Travel Demand Model Update and Maintenance
Project 9.3:	Data Quality Control27
Project 9.4:	Environmental Data Center Partnership - RIGIS Geospatial Database
Project 9.5:	Environmental Resiliency Tool
Special Task	Ph: Transportation Performance Management Dashboard
Special Task	11.1: MPO's Public Participation Plan Update
Project 13.1:	Local Active Transportation Technical Enhancements
Project 13.2:	Support from Water Resources Board
Part II: Fina	ncial Reports

## **PART I - STATUS REPORTS**

The following provides a progress report for all projects contained in the Metropolitan Planning Organization's current work program. The original project descriptions are presented followed by a brief description of the actual work that took place during this quarter as well an explanation of any project delays where applicable.

#### **Project and Special Task List**

#### Activity 2 – State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP)

- Project 2.1: Electronic State Transportation Improvement Program Software Platform
- Special Task 2d: Develop the FFY 2022-2031 State Transportation Improvement Program
- Special Task 2e: Performance-Based Project Selection Criteria for Transportation Projects

## Activity 3 – State and Regional Transportation Operations, Management, and Planning Coordination

- Special Task 3n: Congestion Management Annual Report
- Special Task 30: Congestion Management Plan/Process GIS StoryMaps

#### Activity 4 – Transit Planning

- Project 4.1: High-Capacity Transit Project Development
- Project 4.2: Transit Surveys & Data Acquisition
- Project 4.3: Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation Plan Update

#### **Activity 5 – Freight Planning Implementation**

- Freight and Goods Movement Plan Update with Statewide Truck Parking Study Appendix
- Special Task 5i: Freight Scans

#### Activity 6 – Transportation Planning and Bicycle and Pedestrian Mobility

- Project 6.3: Project Estimates for STIP Projects & Review of Current TAP Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects
- Special Task 61: Bicycle and Pedestrian Project STIP Application Guidebook for Municipalities

#### Activity 7 – Long-Range Land Use & Transportation Planning

- Project 7.4: Land Use 2050: Rhode Island's Plan for Land Use and Transportation
- Special Task 7d: Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)

#### **Activity 9 – Planning Information and Education**

- Project 9.1: Vehicle Probe Transportation Dataset and Eastern Transportation Coalition
- Project 9.2: Travel Demand Model Update and Maintenance
- Project 9.3: Data Quality Control
- Project 9.4: Environmental Data Center Partnership RIGIS Geospatial Database
- Project 9.5: Environmental Resiliency Tool
- Special Task 9h: Transportation Performance Management Dashboard

#### Activity 11 – Title VI Compliance and Environmental Justice

• Special Task 111: MPO's Public Participation Plan Update

#### Activity 13 – Support to Other State Agencies and Municipalities

- Project 13.1: Local Active Transportation Technical Enhancements
- Project 13.2: Support from Water Resources Board

## Activity 2 – State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP)

**Objective:** In close cooperation with RIDOT and RIPTA, oversee the State Transportation Improvement Program process for Rhode Island to ensure that financial planning for transportation responds to current needs, reflects available resources, and meets all federal and State mandates.

#### **<u>Project 2.1: Electronic State Transportation Improvement Program (E-STIP) Software</u>** <u>**Platform**</u>

**Project Description:** This project is a continuation of the STIP Process and Database Enhancements project that began in FY 18. It is for the integration and adoption of State Transportation Improvement Program software platforms to support the development of a web based Electronic State Transportation Improvement Program (E-STIP) database, online project intake, online public comment tools, and online revision toolset. The STIP software applications for the Division of Statewide Planning will link the project information into a geographically based online database for improved project management, coordination with RIDOT and RIPTA, workflow, data/project analysis, and transparency. The software will also improve the STIP project solicitation process by providing the capability for online submissions and prioritization. This function will also greatly improve the staffing workflow, automation, and public transparency.

In addition, to improve engagement and involvement of the public, particularly when soliciting public comments and feedback on proposed projects, plans, and/or programs, the project entails improvements to the process by which public comments are collected, and utilizes technology improvements, such as a specialty web-based software for public comments and outreach campaigns. This project will improve the method of notifying the public about transportation related matters (e.g., plan review and adoption) and STIP updates and amendments. The goal is to reach more of the public, improve public engagement, and increase the level of public feedback in the MPO decision-making process.

As a corollary to this work, the MPO's existing database of over 1,400 contacts will be updated with the most up-to-date roster of state and local elected officials, city and town council representatives, community and special interest groups, stakeholders, and pertinent State and municipal agency contacts.

Project Agency Lead: RIDSP

Partner Agencies: RIDOT

Contact Person: Linsey Callaghan

Schedule for Completion: Ongoing effort through the duration of the UPWP timeframe.

Products / Deliverables:

E-STIP software system and public facing website capabilities

o PMG - E-STIP Manager

o ESRI – Suite of Intake Apps

o Public Comment web-based software application

Project Cost (other than staff time): \$775,902

(\$521,406 FHWA; \$99,316 FTA; \$93,108 RIDOT; \$62,072 RIDSP)

#### Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Successfully installed the PMG STIP Manager software on to RIDOT servers in a testing only environment.
- ✓ Continue to test the PMG STIP Manager software and provided prioritized fixes to PMG on modifications, bugs, and added customizations.
- ✓ Executed a sole contract through RIDOA Purchasing for a new contract with PMG to cover maintenance and added customizations on the STIP Manager Software.
- ✓ Held several meetings with ESRI and RIDOT for the development and review of Iteration #10 for the SWIFT platform. Tested Iterations #9 provided detailed feedback to ESRI.
- ✓ Decided on development items for Iteration #10.
- ✓ Continue to discuss how the potential project scoring would function within SWIFT. This would help to prioritize projects that are the result of a solicitation.
- ✓ Processed invoices from ESRI and PMG.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Received build version #120 deliverables from PMG for the STIP Manager Software.
- ✓ Tested build version #120 and identified numerous other bugs and defects. Communicated these defects and requested changes with PMG.
- ✓ Held several meetings with ESRI and RIDOT for the development of Iteration #11 for the SWIFT platform. Tested Iterations #10 provided detailed feedback to ESRI.
- ✓ Decided on development items for Iteration #11.
- ✓ Continued to discuss how the potential project scoring would function within SWIFT. This would help to prioritize projects that are the result of a solicitation.
- ✓ Finalized the draft STIP project prioritization scoring criteria that will be utilized in the SWIFT application to score and evaluate new STIP applications.
- ✓ Held several internal meetings, as well as meetings with RIDOT on the development of the LRTP GIS project data layer that will be utilized in the SWIFT scoring criteria.
- ✓ Updated the Division/MPO's contact database.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- Received and tested minor updates to resolves some software bugs from PMG for the STIP Manager Software.
- ✓ Identified further customizations for PMG STIP Manager. Reviewed and discussed those changes both with RIDOT and PMG. Identified an implementation schedule and cost sharing with RIDOT for the added customization items to STIP Manager.
- ✓ Executed a no cost contract extension with ESRI until August 1, 2023 to complete the tasks under the contract.
- ✓ Held several meetings with ESRI and RIDOT for the development of Iteration #12 and 13 leading to ESRI's release of Iteration #13 and SWIFT version 2.0. Added functionality under SWIFT 2.0 includes updating SWIFT to the latest webapp builder version, added splash screen and administrative dashboard, updated all the widget versions, RIDOT Bundler History Viewer, Cost Factors estimated costs to complete, updated feedback based on LRTP Goals, Geoprocessing updates, scoring webpage configuration/content, and added ability to export RIDOT Bundler snapshot to STIP.

- ✓ Continued to discuss how the potential project scoring would function within SWIFT. This would help to prioritize projects that are the result of a solicitation.
- ✓ Held several internal meetings, as well as meetings with RIDOT on the development of the LRTP GIS project data layer that will be utilized in the SWIFT scoring criteria.
- ✓ Updated the Division/MPO's contact database.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments

- ✓ Received and tested minor updates from PMG to resolve software bugs in STIP Manager and STIP Viewer Software.
- ✓ Reviewed and provided comments to PMG on a SOW for phase 2 of the planned improvements to STIP Manager.
- ✓ Held several meetings with ESRI and RIDOT for the development of Iterations #14 and #15 leading to ESRI's release of Iterations #14 and #15.
- ✓ Continued to discuss with ESRI and RIDOT how the potential project bundling would function within SWIFT. This would help RIDOT easily more assets between project bundles to achieve greater costs savings.
- ✓ Held several internal meetings, as well as meetings with RIDOT on the development of the LRTP GIS project data layer that will be utilized in the SWIFT scoring criteria.
- ✓ Updated the Division/MPO's contact database.

#### Special Task 2d: FFY 2022-2031 State Transportation Improvement Program

Rewrite in accordance with federal requirements and the Rhode Island State Planning Council's Public Participation Plan and Rules of Procedure.

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Updated the Public Participation Plan with a Statement on Virtual Public Outreach in response to COVID-19, including information on the use of online platforms for virtual public outreach.
- $\checkmark$  The special task is now complete.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

 $\checkmark$  This task is now complete as noted in Q1.

#### Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

 $\checkmark$  This task is now complete as noted in Q1.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

 $\checkmark$  This task is now complete as noted in Q1.

#### Special Task 2e: Performance-Based Project Selection Criteria for Transportation Projects

Develop transparent, data-driven performance-based project selection criteria for prioritizing all asset-based (e.g., bicycle and pedestrian, pavement, traffic safety, bridge, and transit infrastructure) projects proposed for the STIP. Utilize the Transportation Advisory Committee and the State Planning Council **to develop** guidance for scoring projects and overseeing the implementation of the proposed project selection criteria framework. The framework will then be integrated into the E-STIP project intake application being developed with ESRI under Project 2.1 E-STIP Software Platform. This task will produce a criteria guide for transportation alternatives and transit STIP project selection.

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Over the last 2+ months, staff has met weekly (and generally more than once weekly) to discuss the SWIFT project intake tool, as well as frequent meetings with ESRI staff, RIDOT, and RIPTA.
- ✓ Staff has broken the intake down to categories relevant to the LRTP sections, including:
  - Connect People & Places
  - Maintain Transportation Infrastructure
  - Environmental Sustainability
  - Economic Growth
  - Strengthen Communities (Equity)
  - Value to Local Authority
- ✓ Geoprocessed layers for intake have been completed with map service, queried questions are almost completed, and staff is currently completing the scored values associated with each category.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Staff has continued to meet weekly to discuss the SWIFT project intake tool and meet frequently with ESRI staff, RIDOT, and RIPTA.
- ✓ The framework for the tool is substantially complete with technical development of the app still in progress (ESRI). To date, several iterations of the tool have been developed by ESRI and continued software development is ongoing.
- ✓ The bulk of the geoprocessing layers have been developed and a few are waiting additional input from RIDOT (Safety and Cost Estimating) or alignment with RIDOT roads and highways layer to maintain accurate topology (project concept layers developed as part of Long-Range Transportation Plan, Transit Master Plan, and Bicycle Mobility Plan). Feature layer development will continue into 3<sup>rd</sup> Quarter.
- ✓ Many of the scored values associated with each category is finished for feature classes (or map service layers) substantially complete. Score values will be reviewed and adopted by the Transportation Advisory Committee and State Planning Council upon final review by the working group members.
- ✓ Work on this project will continue into Quarter 3 with software development, map service layers, and implementation of scoring criteria to undergo testing and revision.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Staff continue to work on the LRTP GIS project layer to assist in the scoring, prioritization, and potential programming of new STIP projects in SWIFT and tracking projects as they advance. Proposed projects will score higher in SWIFT if they are already identified as a potential project in the LRTP, Bicycle Mobility Plan, and/or Transit Master Plan (TMP).
- ✓ In its current state, the LRTP layer has a series of roughly placed lines and points that need definitive geometry limits and confirmation regarding their viability to be completed (or if they have already been completed).
- ✓ Staff also worked to input data from the TMP, as the LRTP pool of projects consists of several TMP projects.
- ✓ RIDSP has met several times with RIDOT to complete the core data infrastructure for this application and now works to complete the geometry of specific projects.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments

- ✓ Staff have continued progress on the LRTP GIS project layer. RIDSP met with RIPTA to decide how to best map projects originating in the TMP. RIPTA has decided to create a mapped layer in house that will supplement transit projects that were included in the LRTP.
- Several projects have been mapped. Research is ongoing regarding these project locations and mapping continues to progress.
- RIDSP staff meets biweekly, if not more often, to discuss the layer in working meeting sessions.

# Activity 3 – State and Regional Transportation Operations, Management, and Planning Coordination

**Objective:** Improve the performance of the existing transportation system in order to 1) relieve recurring and non-recurring vehicular congestion; and 2) maximize safety and mobility for people and goods. Work with partner agencies to implement strategies such as the use of travel demand reduction, operational management strategies, education, enforcement, and engineering. Partner with State and regional agencies on such issues as coordinated regional planning, transportation finance reform, and FAST Act implementation. In collaboration with federal, state, municipal, and private partners, promote projects that enhance the connectivity between transportation modes. Promote consistency between transportation systems and planned growth.

#### Special Task 3n: Congestion Management Annual Report:

**Congestion Management Annual Report:** Prepare an annual report that presents data on each of the identified Congestion Management Process performance measures. The report will include:

- An inventory of the status of congestion mitigation projects listed in the CMP, as well as any other projects undertaken that might have had significant congestion impacts.
- A comparative review of each performance measure during 2021 as compared to the baseline data set from 2018, and the Congestion Report from 2019 and 2020 to analyze congestion levels and trends.

- Observations on any significant trends and a discussion of factors that may have led to those trends, including actions to implement congestion management strategies, as well as external factors such as growth in traffic or population, severe weather conditions, etc. that may have influenced congestion during the year.
- Identification of any changes in data sources or computational methods that may have influenced each measure.
- Potential responses to trends e.g., if congestion is significantly increasing in a corridor, should efforts be made beyond existing plans to address the congestion?
- Review of the trends in relation to established performance targets to determine if additional responses to manage congestion are needed.

Staff will utilize data from INRIX/RITIS and coordinate efforts to gain access to the necessary data from the other agencies responsible for collecting it. Since the baselines were set in 2018, and data was available for both 2019 and 2020, a separate report will be completed for the 2021 Report.

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Preliminary efforts are underway to export relevant data sets from the RITIS platform for analysis. Export has been completed and analysis is underway.
- ✓ Added the CMP annual report to the next November 3<sup>rd</sup> CMTF meeting agenda to begin discussion with RIDOT and RIPTA about obtaining the necessary information to infill the 2020 CMP report.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Meeting was held in mid-December with RIDOT to lay out the process of completing the annual congestion report for 2022 with 2020 Inrix travel time data where tasks were divided to the appropriate parties. Separate correspondence was made with RIPTA as last year's staff has left. A follow-up meeting has been scheduled for mid-January.
- ✓ Bottleneck export has been completed and relevant data has been accounted for performance measure tracking. Some preliminary data has also been acquired from RIDOT regarding performance measures. Mapping will follow.
- $\checkmark$  This task is on schedule to be completed prior to the usual May goal.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ RIDSP, RIDOT, and RIPTA have completed calculations for CMP performance measures and targets with the exception of four RIPTA measures (these will be completed at a later date due to staff turnover at RIPTA).
- ✓ RIDSP staff and RIDOT updated the CMP Projects and reported on project status for projects identified in the CMP. RIDSP has added 48 new projects that could impact congestion and are included in the FFY 2022-2031 STIP.
- ✓ RIDSP and RIDOT staff met with INRIX to discuss potentially adding a congested corridors dashboard to the RIDSP website based off INRIX Signal Analytics data to better represent the corridors needing focus across the State.
- ✓ Currently, staff awaits project updates from RIPTA to complete the report (staffing at RIPTA has caused this portion to be delayed). Report is still on target to be brought to the TAC in May and SPC in June.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ The 2022 Congestion Management Annual Report was completed in May 2022. It was presented to the TAC in May and the SPC in June for information only and is currently available on the RIDSP website.
- ✓ Follow-up work regarding RIPTA measures will still need to be completed prior to the next reporting year.
- ✓ The development of a Congested Corridors dashboard in currently in progress and will be progressing through the 2023 UPWP.

#### Special Task 30: Congestion Management Plan/Process GIS StoryMaps

To better display the results of the CMP, RIDSP staff will create a comprehensive summary of the 2021 data by utilizing ESRI's ArcGIS StoryMaps. Using StoryMaps will provide the public with a web resource to easily view many of the congestion ranking data findings identified in the CMP in an attractive and straightforward platform. This Special Task will produce Congestion Management Plan/Process GIS StoryMaps.

RIDSP is the lead agency for this Special Task with RIDOT as a partner. The contact persons are Linsey Callaghan and Mason Perone. The deliverable for this Special Task is the Annual Congestion Report for 2021.

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ The ArcGIS Story Map for the Congestion Management Plan has been completed and presented to both the TAC and SPC. It has been added to the Congestion section of our website for public view.
- ✓ Next steps will be to update the relevant data with resources from the 2020 data export which is used to complete the CMP Annual Report, to be completed in Spring 2022.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- Preliminary efforts have been made to complete the CMP Annual Report, which will provide more data to include in the Congestion Management StoryMap.
- $\checkmark$  This is an ongoing task.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- Travel time performance data has been collected for the Congestion Management Story Map update.
- ✓ Staff is currently working with INRIX to obtain a new corridors dashboard based off the work that was completed to infill the Signal Analytics Corridor tool with a more robust network on roadways that could be impacted most by congestion. Ideally, this dashboard would live within the Story Map once it is completed.
- ✓ We anticipate the CMP Story Map will be updated with current data infilled from the CMP in May.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ GIS layers have been created for the StoryMap update, along with all updates to the associated tables that are included in the CMP.

- ✓ The final step is to input this data into the online StoryMap application. This is an ongoing task.
- ✓ In addition, staff has also conducted research regarding the corridors dashboard. INRIX may be able to assist in creating a public facing interface so the corridors layer will be more regularly updated and the data will be more granular than the static map completed in the original CMP. Staff has also looked into other applications, such as Urban SDK, to see if there are other options for presenting this data. Staff currently exports data manually from INRIX to complete a top signals and corridors working spreadsheet, but RIDSP is working on streamlining this process in the coming year.

## **Activity 4 – Transit Planning**

**Objective:** Provide a safe, robust, and convenient network of transit services with seamless intermodal connections in support of increased employment opportunities, improved environmental quality, and reduced congestion and automobile dependency.

#### Project 4.1: High Capacity Transit Project Development

**Project Description:** Transit Forward RI 2040, the transit element of Rhode Island's Long-Range Transportation Plan, identifies two corridors that have the level of transit demand to warrant high-capacity transit – either bus rapid transit or light rail. These prospective corridors present the greatest opportunities to leverage federal New Starts/Small Starts funding. To be eligible for these funds in the future, RIPTA, with its partners at RIDOT and Statewide Planning, will undertake planning activities required under FTA's project development procedures, including but not limited to environmental review, developing and identifying alternatives, selection of the locally preferred alternatives, and other activities specified by the FTA.

#### Project Agency Lead: RIPTA

#### Partner Agencies: RIDSP, RIDOT

Contact Person: Sara Ingle, Director of Long-Planning

Schedule for Completion: Project will be completed within 24-36 months.

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

- Environmental Analysis
- Alternative Analysis
- Selection of Locally Preferred Alternative(s)

#### Project Cost (other than staff time): \$100,000 (\$80,000 FTA; \$20,000 RIPTA)

#### Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ Scoping is underway.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ RAISE planning grant received in December 2021 to support this project. Scoping continues.

#### Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ Scoping continues. TIP amendment adding grant funds was adopted on February 17, 2022. Awaiting "paper grant" process to be initiated by USDOT/FTA, then can submit grant into TrAMS for execution.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

 Scoping continues; paper grant process under way with completion anticipated in Quarter 1 of FY 2023. TrAMS execution anticipated following FTA year-end closeout in Quarter 2 of FY 2023.

## Project 4.2: Transit Surveys & Data Acquisition

**Project Description:** his project is a continuation from FY 21. As a data-driven industry, transit requires a steady influx of timely information in order to provide optimal services. RIPTA acquires data from a wide variety of sources ranging from on-vehicle fareboxes and automated passenger counters to customer and community surveys. This multi-year project will support RIPTA's efforts relating to data gathering and integration, including implementation of a Title VI-compliant on-board customer survey on a three- to five-year cycle. The project information that follows is specific to this FTA-mandated survey; however, additional survey work and/or data acquisition may be undertaken should funding resources allow.

On-Board Customer Survey: FTA requires all transit agencies that operate 50 or more fixed route vehicles in peak service and are located in a UZA of 200,000 or more in population to collect survey data regarding customer demographics and travel patterns no less than every five years. In compliance with this requirement, and with the further goal of maximizing service equity and efficiency through a data-driven approach to service planning, RIPTA will conduct a comprehensive on-board survey of existing riders. The survey results will also be used to help validate and calibrate the Rhode Island Statewide Model.

#### Project Agency Lead: RIPTA

#### Partner Agencies: RIDSP

Contact Person: Sarah Ingle, Planning Manager

#### **Schedule for Completion:**

- Phase I: Procurement Issue RFP FY 21 Q3, Notice to Proceed FY 21 Q4
- Phase II: Survey FY 22 Q2 (October 2021)

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

 Survey report and dataset including origins/destinations, demographic/socio-economic characteristics, and fare payment

#### **Project Cost (other than staff time):**

#### Phase I: Procurement – \$50,000 (\$40,000 FTA; \$10,000 RIPTA) Phase II: Survey – \$200,000 (\$160,000 FTA; \$40,000 RIPTA)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Project kicked off 8/24/2021
- ✓ Survey instrument developed
- ✓ Work plan finalized with contractor
- ✓ Survey pilot and completed preparations for full surveying during Q2

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ On-board survey conducted
- ✓ Contractor completing survey data processing
- ✓ Final report in draft
- ✓ Data dashboard in design

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Contractor completing final report with summaries of survey results
- ✓ Data dashboard being produced by Contractor

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Data dashboard received from Contractor
- ✓ Final survey results received
- ✓ Preparing project closeout

#### **Project 4.3:** Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Technology Plan Update

**Project Description:** As Rhode Island's manager of federal funds under the Section 5310 Program for Enhanced Mobility for Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities, RIPTA is required to develop and maintain a statewide Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan that identifies unmet transportation needs, provides implementation strategies, and prioritizes projects and programs for funding. Rhode Island's current Coordinated Plan was developed in 2017. This project will enable RIPTA to incorporate elements of the recently adopted Transit Master Plan into a new version while meeting its federal obligation to update the Coordinated Plan every five years. Older adults, individuals with disabilities, and representatives of public, private, and nonprofit transportation and human service providers will be involved in the planning process.

#### **Project Agency Lead:** RIPTA

#### Partner Agencies: RIDSP

Contact Person: Sara Ingle, Director of Long-Range Planning

Schedule for Completion: Plan will be developed between July 1, 2021 and December 31, 2022

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

> Updated Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan

Project Cost (other than staff time): \$100,000 (\$80,000 FTA; \$20,000 RIPTA)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ RFP Issued 9/22/2021. Bid responses due 10/28/2021.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ Consulting team selected. EEO process underway.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

 Team prepared for first round of 4 virtual public listening sessions scheduled in April and May.

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Conducted 4 public listening sessions.
- Reported on initial findings to statewide Human Services Transportation Coordinating Council.
- ✓ Refined service maps and developed demographic maps.

## **Activity 5 – Freight Planning Implementation**

**Objective:** Support a vigorous economy by facilitating the multi-modal movement of freight within Rhode Island and the northeast region.

## Project 5.1: <u>Freight and Goods Movement Plan Update with Statewide Truck Parking Study</u> <u>Appendix</u>

**Project Description:** Rhode Island's *Freight and Goods Movement Plan* was developed to address the MAP-21 and FAST Act requirements to address freight mobility within a statewide multimodal infrastructure network. The Plan was approved by FHWA on July 21, 2017 and will expire on July 21, 2022. This project will fulfil the requirement that the Plan must be updated every five years. This update will include all the required elements of a State Freight Plan as required by 49 U.S.C. § 70202 to ensure that Rhode Island maintains eligibility for the National Highway Freight Program formula funds. We will also update the required freight investment plan to include a project list as required by 49 U.S.C. § 70202 (b).

The Plan update will be completed by a combination of staff work and contractor assistance in consultation with the Freight Advisory Committee and other public and private sector stakeholders. The contractor assistance will primarily include work to update the State of Rhode Island Freight Forecast as well as related data and mapping assistance. Additionally, we will include an item for the consultant to provide grant writing assistance for freight ITS infrastructure implementation.

## State Truck Parking Study Appendix

MAP-21 and the FAST Act enacted Jason's Law which identified requirements for states to identify, monitor, and improve parking for trucks and to address the shortage of long-term truck parking and improve safety for trucks parking along the National Highway System.

The *Freight and Good Movement Plan* identified truck parking demand constraints within Rhode Island highlighting the state's current efforts to monitor truck parking spaces along with the need to address existing and future growth challenges. The Plan identified the need to better understand the supply and demand of Rhode Island's existing truck parking infrastructure, the systems gaps, future needs statewide, and to add expanded capacity for parking and services if feasible. Moving forward, Rhode Island will need to have a foundation to further justify, strategize, and prioritize future truck parking infrastructure investments statewide along the highway freight network. To this end, a Statewide Truck Parking Study will be added as an Appendix to the update of the *Freight and Goods Movement Plan*.

The Truck Parking Study will allow the RIDSP and RIDOT to achieve the following key objectives:

- Document Truck Parking Supply, both in list form and graphically, for public and private truck parking
- Identify Truck Parking Demand factors
- Utilize the RITIS PDA USER SUITE and INRIX Probe Data to analyze and assess current Truck Parking supply and demand, and the gaps statewide
- Develop Truck Parking improvement opportunities
- Document the truck parking needs statewide, both in list form and graphically
- Identify and prioritize truck parking projects
- Develop Truck Parking solution implementation strategies:
  - Identify and develop Truck Parking policies
  - o Identify State agency and private sector company role(s) in advancing truck parking
  - o Identify New and Existing Private-Public Partnership (P3) opportunities
- Identify and analyze performance metrics for future truck parking advancement (including Freight ITS and / or other existing technology e.g., DMS system).

#### Project Agency Lead: RIDSP

## Partner Agencies: RIDOT

## Contact Person: Josh O'Neill and Linsey Callaghan

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

- > Updated and Compliant Statewide Freight and Goods Movement Plan
- > Statewide Truck Parking Study as an Appendix to the Plan
- Executive Summary

# **Project Cost (other than staff time):** \$350,000 (\$280,000 FHWA; \$35,000 RIDOT; \$35,000 RIDSP)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Three consultant proposals have been submitted to RIDSP in response to the Freight Plan Update RFP, which will also include the added Statewide Truck Parking Study Appendix and updated Freight Forecast for Rhode Island.
- ✓ RIDSP has formed a proposal review committee of six members of the RI Freight Advisory Committee, including RIDSP staff. This committee is currently reviewing and scoring the three proposals. The proposal review committee will meet on October 19, to discuss the proposals and offer final scorings to select a vendor.
- ✓ It is expected that the highest rated vendor will be selected for the project within a week of the October 19 proposal review committee meeting.
- ✓ A plan of holding a "kick-off" meeting and presentation with the Vendor for both our Transportation Advisory Committee and Freight Advisory Committee either in November or December.
- ✓ The 2022 Rhode Island Freight Plan update is proceeding on time and on budget.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ The contract execution and review and approvals from the State Purchasing Department and the RI Office of Equity, Diversity, and Opportunity (ODEO) have taken longer than expected for the selected firm WSP USA Inc, who will be assisting with the Freight and Goods Movement Plan Update.
- ✓ Several staff absences at the State Purchasing department due to Covid-19 also have caused delays in receiving the required Notice to Proceed in order to hold the project kickoff. These issues are finally being in January and we have now scheduled a project kick-off meeting with WSP USA Inc. and the Division of Statewide Planning on January 25, 2022.
- ✓ While we were working to overcome these final hurdles with State Purchasing and ODEO, we were made aware of new Plan content requirements for State Freight Plans that were included in the recently passed Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) in November that will have an impact on this Plan update.
- ✓ We have been told that guidance on the new freight plan requirement will not be provided by FHWA until summer 2022, when our 5-year update is due. Therefore, we have requested a one-year extension on this Plan update deadline in order to have enough time to comply with the new Plan requirements and submit a fully compliant updated Plan.
- ✓ We will move forward on this update expeditiously with our new contractor WSP USA Inc. and continue to update the Plan with staff time as well.

#### Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Staff has completed an "Interim" Plan Draft which will be reviewed by our Freight Advisory Committee in May and then sent to our TAC and SPC for approval in June and submitted to FHWA to meet our 5-year plan update in July. We are moving forward with this "Interim" Plan update since FHWA denied our request for a one-year extension on the current five-year plan expiration date of July 22.
- ✓ We will then continue to work on Freight Plan update components with our contractor WSP USA Inc., who are diligently moving forward on our Statewide Truck Parking Study and Freight Commodity Flow Analysis and Freight Forecast reports.
- ✓ WSP began work on our Statewide Truck Parking Study in February and have already completed a review of pertinent previous plans, studies, and guidebooks, begun work on the truck parking system inventory, and supply and demand analysis.

- ✓ WSP presented at our March 3<sup>rd</sup>, Freight Advisory Committee meeting on their scope of work on the Freight Plan for the next several months and WSP will be coming back to present at the May 9<sup>th</sup>, Freight Advisory Committee meeting on the results of the Industry Stakeholder Interviews and Trucking Industry online survey. Work is also starting on the Freight Commodity Flow Analysis and Freight Forecast with IHS Markit.
- ✓ We are completing work on our "Interim" Plan Draft for FHWA submission now and continuing work with WSP USA Inc. Through September and plan on then submitting a more comprehensive Freight Plan update to FHWA by December that will include the contracted reports by WSP USA Inc., which will then constitute our 4-Year Rhode Island Freight and Good Movement Plan for 2022-2026.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Staff continued work to complete a 2022 Rhode Island Freight and Goods Movement Plan -Interim Update for submission to FHWA before the July 21, 2022 5-year plan update deadline. We believe this Interim Update meets all of the new requirements under the IIJA/BIL for state freight plans. We will submit a second update of this Plan in December which will include the additional completed Statewide Truck Parking Study and Freight Commodity Flow and Freight Forecast reports from WSP USA Inc.
- ✓ We submitted Drafts of the 2022 Rhode Island Freight and Goods Movement Plan Interim Update and gave presentations on the report to our Freight Advisory Committee on May 9<sup>th</sup>, our Transportation Advisory Committee on May 26<sup>th</sup>, and our State Planning Council on June 3<sup>rd</sup>.
- ✓ At the June 3<sup>rd</sup> State Planning Council meeting, the Council adopted the 2022 Freight and Goods Movement Plan - Interim Update and staff then submitted the Plan to FHWA the same day so they could begin their review of the document.
- ✓ The 2022 Rhode Island Freight and Goods Movement Plan Interim Update is currently pending approval with FHWA.
- ✓ Staff is continuing work with WSP USA Inc. and currently reviewing the submitted Draft documents from WSP which includes; Truck Parking Literature Review, Truck Parking Inventory Report, Stakeholder Engagement and truck Parking Survey Report, and Commodity Flow and Freight Forecast Report.

#### Special Task 5i: Freight Scans

Conduct and lead 2-3 freight scans to better equip and educate the staff of municipal departments, particularly planning, with an increased understanding of freight trends and with a greater capacity to address freight issues by organizing tours and surveys of significant freight companies within the state. Staff will meet with the stakeholders at the beginning of a freight scan for an orientation and discussion about the desired outcomes of the specific scan. After the scan, RIDSP staff will prepare a freight-related online ESRI/ArcGIS story map for that specific scan.

#### Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ The municipal freight scan projects have been put on hold for the duration of the Covid-19 Pandemic, since gathering in large groups and conducting facility tours is not possible until the Pandemic has subsided. Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ The municipal freight scan projects have been put on hold for the duration of the Covid-19 Pandemic, since gathering in large groups and conducting facility tours is not possible until the Pandemic has subsided.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ The municipal freight scan projects have been put on hold for the duration of the Covid-19 Pandemic, since gathering in large groups and conducting facility tours is not possible until the Pandemic has subsided.
- ✓ We expect to begin freight facility tours again in the next UPWPW, likely starting up again in the summer of 2022.

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Staff have begun initial discussions with RI Food Policy Council to get better understanding of the intersections between the food sector and the transportation sector for freight planning.
- ✓ Staff is hoping to identify and reach out to some contacts in the food and beverage industry this summer to begin setting up freight scan tours of industry sites for our freight advisory committee members and local planners.
- ✓ This project is ongoing and more detail will be provided in future quarterly reports.

## Activity 6 – Transportation Planning and Bicycle and Pedestrian Mobility

**Objective:** Improve the overall performance, safety, and reliability of the multi-modal transportation system in Rhode Island through local, regional, and statewide transportation planning efforts. Utilize performance management data to support decisions to help achieve desired performance outcomes. Performance management is credited with improving project and program delivery, informing investment decision-making, focusing staff on priorities, and providing greater transparency and accountability to the public. Transportation Planning also includes maintaining the Long-Range Transportation Plan and related plans including those for bicycles, pedestrians, and rail. Through coordinated planning efforts, seek ways to reduce auto congestion and single occupant vehicle dependency, enhance transit usage and connections, and encourage more walking and biking in communities and downtowns, resulting in improved public health, air quality, and quality of life for residents.

#### **Project 6.3: Project Estimates for STIP Projects & Review of Current TAP Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects**

**Project Description:** This is a continuation and combining of the Project Estimates from Applicants for STIP Projects from FY 19 and Review of Current TAP Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects from FY 20. This project is intended to improve the cost estimates associated with STIP applications; to improve municipal estimates for proposed projects; and to consider developing methods to allow for estimates developed in the current STIP year to be adjusted according to changes in costs to design and construct projects based on industry standards in order to provide for more reliable out-year programming. The project also includes reviewing a selection of current Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) bicycle- and pedestrian-related projects to determine whether projects have accurate cost estimates and schedules, and a review of structurally deficient bridges on existing dedicated off-road bicycle facilities to determine accurate cost estimates and schedules to bring these structures into a state of good repair. Projects will be evaluated based upon essential elements including, but not necessarily limited to:

- purpose;
- need, significance (to include connectivity);
- usage;
- readiness (natural resource permitting requirements, cultural resource permitting requirements, utility impacts, and potential right-of-way actions); and,
- reliability of conceptual cost estimate.

#### Project Agency Lead: RIDOT

#### Partner Agencies: RIDSP

Contact Person: Pam Cotter, Acting Administrator, RIDOT Planning

Schedule for Completion: Ongoing effort through the duration of the UPWP timeframe.

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

- > A guide demonstrating professionally acceptable ways to estimate STIP project costs.
- > Report and recommendations to guide planning and programming decision-making.

#### Project Cost (other than staff time): \$125,000 (\$100,000 FHWA; \$25,000 RIDOT)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- $\checkmark$  On-call contract under way for readiness evaluations to help determine readiness factors
- ✓ Prescoping has begun on six Active Transportation Projects

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- Reviewed newly published AASHTO <u>Guide for Planning</u>, <u>Design and Operation of Pedestrian</u> <u>Facilities</u>
- ✓ Pre-scoping of 20 additional Active Transportation projects completed

#### Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Readiness matrix complete
- ✓ Prescoping of Active Transportation projects continues

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Readiness Review completed for Washington Secondary Bike Path state-of-good repairs
- ✓ Bike lanes prescoped for Boston Neck (Route 1A) pavement project (STIP 1362) in Narragansett and North Kingstown

#### Special Task 61: Bicycle and Pedestrian Project STIP Application Guidebook for Municipalities

Provide municipalities with a guidebook for submitting new bicycle and pedestrian project applications requesting funding through the State Transportation Improvement Program development process. The guidebook will consist of several components which will clarify and outline the submission process for municipalities when submitting new bicycle and pedestrian projects to be considered for the STIP's Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP). Items that will be detailed in the Guide include federal design and construction requirements, project eligibility, sponsor and match funding requirements, the reimbursement process, E-STIP application process, scoring/selection criteria, and timeline. The intention is to have a guiding document to house the performance-based bicycle and pedestrian selection criteria for prioritizing bicycle and pedestrian projects. This will provide a level of transparency both in how projects are selected and how to make sure these requirements are met prior to submission to the State.

#### Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- Discussions held with Statewide Planning and various stakeholders on necessary guidelines for eSTIP intake.
- ✓ Bike path map layer incorporated into ongoing development of SWIFT, which will become the STIP project intake software in the future.
- ✓ New geospatial drawing tools developed with Esri to create and edit bicycle and pedestrian assets.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Read above AASHTO guide to inform criteria for cities and towns.
- ✓ eSTIP intake development continues.
- ✓ Meetings held between RIDOT and leaders of the state's 39 cities and towns to familiarize them with the STIP process and project submission. So far about 21 meetings have been completed.

#### Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Meetings held between RIDOT and leaders of the state's 39 cities and towns to familiarize them with the STIP process and project submission completed.
- ✓ Review conducting of state's Complete Streets Policies
- ✓ Review of new federal requirements around Complete Streets

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ Principal Planner hired as state bicycle coordinator, will begin RIDOT work on August 1, 2022, to continue work of leading cities and towns in applying for STIP project funds.

## Activity 7 – Long-Range Land Use & Transportation Planning

**Objective:** Guide development patterns in the State to create a resilient network of concentrated healthy population centers with access to affordable housing, economic opportunity, and an extensive greenspace network connected by transportation options including convenient transit, uncongested roadways, bikeways, rail, and air. Maximize the efficiency of the public and private

investments by promoting high-quality infrastructure corridors. Determine the most appropriate location of all kinds of development, services, and transportation linkages.

#### Project 7.4: Land Use 2050: Rhode Island's Plan for Land Use and Transportation

**Project Overview:** This project will continue the process started in FY20 of updating the State Guide Plan Element 121, *Land Use* 2025: *Rhode Island's Land Use Policies and Plan* to synchronize with the updated long-range transportation plan, *Moving Forward RI 2040*. This plan informs and guides decision-makers by setting the direction for economic and transportation investment in the State over a twenty-year horizon. As this project moves towards preliminary results, an informal working group of municipal planners will be assembled to assist as an advisory stakeholder/ writing group for early drafts. Division staff working on climate change and sea level rise will be asked to identify climate impacts to land uses and transportation process will be developed after technical papers, draft goals, and strategies to engage other state officials, municipal planners, the public, regional associations, and other stakeholder groups are assembled. After conducting extensive outreach and public participation, a preliminary draft will be presented to Technical Committee and State Planning Council for adoption. The project will continue work to:

- 1. Continue to develop new impervious surface and land use / land cover digital data for use in the update of *Land Use 2025* and other work of the Division. This will involve:
  - Continued coordination with USGS/DEM/URI staff, to produce new 2020 impervious surface and land use / land cover digital data. The data will be produced by a USGS federally selected vendor and consist of a statewide, seamless vector polygon GIS dataset.
  - Providing quality control and approval of the data by ensuring that the same procedures used for the creation of prior impervious and land use / land cover data is followed and will meet RIGIS distribution standards and approving the content of the metadata for the new data layers.
  - Creating and publishing a technical document outlining the procedures used in data development.
- 2. Contract with a mapping specific consultant who focuses on GIS data to collect and create new digital information for: creating a statewide composite of municipal future land use maps, statewide generalized zoning districts, and current and proposed growth centers for each RI community. The consultant will create a new GIS data layers and maps for each item listed above along with a technical document outlining the procedures used in data development with appropriate metadata.
- 3. Develop a land use/land cover time series technical presentation Understanding land use change is a very important aspect of managing growth and understanding its impacts on the transportation systems in the State. Access digital statewide land use /land cover data to complete an analysis of land use trends between 1988 and 2020. Major changes to Rhode Island's landscape will be summarized using photos, other media and maps showing land use change over time. Use new composite future land use municipal map to compare and analyze new map with historical 2002 composite future land use map for changes to desired land uses. Consult with municipal planners on advisory stakeholder group throughout the

presentation development to confirm findings. Include a summary of the trends discovered in the SGP Element update.

- 4. Contract with an equity consultant with focus on equity in land use to identify environmental justice, social equity, and disparity issues related to land use in the State. Require contractor to produce a technical paper and presentation focusing on Rhode Island's historical structures, institutions, and to identify preliminary inclusive policies to address social equity in land use and identify preliminary strategies that could be used, in a variety of settings statewide, to implement effective change in this area. Consult with municipal planners on advisory stakeholder group throughout to confirm findings.
- 5. Continue to survey and interview key stakeholders statewide on the goals, polices, and implementation effectiveness of *Land Use 2025*. Discuss the utility of the SGP to stakeholders, known or potential data gaps, and identify new issues for update of this SGP Element. Create a presentation summarizing the surveys conducted and suggestions gathered for the Update.
- 6. Continue to update the inventory of current and proposed growth centers for each RI community for addition to the future land use map.
- 7. Provide oversight for Division staff to update this SGP Element with climate change, resiliency, adaption, and mitigation strategies and with other relevant SGP Element updates. Division staff working on climate change and sea level raise will write a new text section, which includes preliminary strategies related to climate change and sea level rise. Consult with municipal planners through an informal advisory stakeholder group on preliminary draft text and strategies.
- 8. Provide oversight for Division staff for writing cross references for update to relevant updated SGP Elements such as *Moving Forward RI 2040*, *RI Energy 2035*, *RI Solid Waste 2035*, *Water 2030*, and *Water Quality 2035* Plans.

#### Project Lead: RIDSP

#### Partners: URI/RIGIS; RIDOT; RIPTA; RIDEM; RIEMA; CRMC; RIDOH; CommerceRI

Schedule for Implementation: This is the second year of a four-year planning process.

#### **Deliverables:**

- > 2020 impervious surface and land use / land cover digital data
- > Updated composite municipal future land use data and map
- New generalized statewide zoning data and map
- Updated growth centers data and map
- Land Use Time series analysis presentation
- Social Equity technical paper and presentation
- Summary presentation of stakeholders' surveys

#### **Project Cost (other than staff time):**

\$195,000 (\$136,500 FHWA; \$19,500 FTA; \$39,000 RIDSP)

- \$30,000 LULC continued contract with USGS
- \$80,000 new mapping consultant
- \$85,000 new equity consultant

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Continued to educate and inform Division and other State agency staff on the purpose of, the State Guide Plan and importance of the land use Element
- ✓ Obtained higher SurveyMonkey.com license for ongoing surveys
- ✓ Began research on compiling statewide building permit data for analysis
- ✓ Continued coordination with USGS/DEM/URI staff on:
  - Impervious Data
    - Received delivery of all Blocks
    - Completed quality control review
    - Approved final Rhode Island Impervious.gdb raster deliverable and vector change layers
    - Accepted final Rhode Island Impervious Validation Report
  - Land Use Land Cover Data
    - Block 1 of 5 Received delivery of final Block of photointerpretation and digitizing across the ~5.4 sq miles pilot area for LULC change and completed quality control review for:
      - Block 1(Final LULC vector)
      - Block 1 LULC Metadata.xml metadata
      - Rhode Island Block 1 LULC Validation Report.docx
    - Accepted final deliverable for Block 1
  - Block 2 of 5 Received delivery of draft and final blocks of photointerpretation and digitizing across East Bay communities for LULC change and completed quality control review for:
    - Conducted Zoom meeting with Technical Team on quality control comments submitted on draft Block and LULC classification issues/ buffers identified
    - Completed quality control review for:
      - Block\_2 (Final LULC vector)
      - Block\_2\_LULC\_Metadata.xml metadata
      - Rhode\_Island\_Block\_2\_LULC\_Validation\_Report.docx
    - Accepted final deliverable for Block 2

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Continued coordination with USGS/DEM/URI staff on 2020 Impervious Data & Land Use Land Cover Data
  - Accepted final deliverable for Blocks 1 & 2
  - Block 3 Received delivery of block of photointerpretation and digitizing for West Bay area of RI for LULC change and;
    - Conducted Zoom meeting with Technical Team on quality control comments submitted on the Block and LULC coding/classification issues
    - Completed quality control reviews for:
      - Block 3 (Final LULC vector)
      - Block 3LULC\_Metadata.xml metadata
      - Rhode Island Block 3 LULC\_Validation\_Reports.docx

- ✓ Initiated research on equity land use issues and collected reports by others on justice, social equity land use issues and provided technical assistance to the NBEP for conducting their Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Justice organizational and community assessment
- ✓ Conducted survey of housing and development stakeholders for input into update Four online surveys completed with over 100 responses received to date
- ✓ Continued coordination with RI state Building Commissioner on data for a comprehensive list of building permits (by type and scale) in RI in the last ten years for Update
- ✓ Continued research into local sources for building permit information for Update
- Coordinated with USEPA on assistance for studying infrastructure status and needs for update
- ✓ Conducted outreach to and Zoom meeting with HousingWorks RI at Roger Williams University for identifying RI zoning and housing issues for Update

#### Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Continued coordination with USGS/DEM/URI staff on 2020 Impervious Data & Land Use Land Cover Data
  - Blocks 4 & 5- Received delivery of block of photointerpretation and digitizing for Western area of RI for LULC change and;
    - Conducted Zoom meeting with Technical Team on quality control comments submitted on the Block and LULC coding/classification issues
    - Completed quality control reviews for:
      - Blocks 4 & 5 (Final LULC vector)
      - Blocks 4 & 5 LULC\_Metadata.xml metadata
      - Rhode Island Blocks 4 & 5\_LULC\_Validation\_Reports.docx
  - Accepted final deliverables for Blocks 3, 4 and 5
- ✓ Continued research on equity land use issues and collected reports by others on justice and social equity land use issues
- ✓ Continued coordination with RI state Building Commissioner on data for a comprehensive list of building permits (by type and scale) in RI in the last ten years and continued research into local sources for building permit information.

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- Provided oversight of URI EDC and approved final metadata document and posting of completed 2020 Impervious Data & Land Use Land Cover Data on RIGIS
  - Impervious Surface (2020) | RIGIS
  - o https://www.rigis.org/maps/land-use-and-land-cover-2020
- ✓ Continued to educate and inform Division and other state agency staff on the purpose of, the State Guide Plan and importance of *RI Land Use 2025* Element 121
- ✓ Continued research on data sources for building permits in RI
- ✓ Complied results of four surveys conducted
- ✓ Conducted 2<sup>nd</sup> Zoom meeting and outreach with HousingWorksRI at Roger Williams University for identifying land use related issues for Update
- ✓ Began writing an RFP for mapping consultant

#### Special Task 7d: Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)

The RIDSP, with funding from the State Planning Assistance program of the U.S. Economic Development Administration, will draft a Post-Pandemic Five-Year Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy for the State of Rhode Island. A CEDS is a strategy-driven plan for economic development that must be updated every five years. The Economic Development State Guide Plan element serves as a coordinating vehicle to ensure that the activities of the state and local government, as well as the private sector, are focused on achieving a shared vision. The Plan serves both as a guidance document to municipalities as they draft their individual local comprehensive plans and as one of the standards for State approval of a local comprehensive plan.

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ The RI Commerce Corporation is taking the lead on the CEDS and has applied for funding from the US Economic Development Administration (Statewide Planning grant program) to draft an updated CEDS for Rhode Island.
- ✓ The RIDSP continues to work with the Governor's Office and Commerce to support all parties in this effort.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ The RI Commerce Corporation is taking the lead on the CEDS and has received funding from the US Economic Development Administration to draft the RI CEDS.
- ✓ The RIDSP continues to work with the Governor's Office and Commerce to support the team at Commerce in this effort.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ The RI Commerce Corporation is taking the lead on the CEDS and has received funding from the US Economic Development Administration to draft the RI CEDS.
- ✓ The RIDSP continues to work with the Governor's Office and Commerce to support the team at Commerce in this effort.

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ The RI Commerce Corporation is taking the lead on the CEDS and has applied for funding from the US Economic Development Administration to draft the RI CEDS.
- ✓ The RIDSP continues to work with the Governor's Office and Commerce to support them on this effort.

## **Activity 9 – Planning Information and Education**

**Objective:** Provide original data analysis on pertinent topics, provide custom transportation demographic, social, economic, and housing analysis as requested. Manage and coordinate data to support transportation and other planning activities. Ensure the availability, accessibility, and dissemination of geospatial and demographic data to State agencies, local governments, and other data users. Enhance the MPO's Performance-Based Planning and Programing capabilities, increase public transparency, and better integrate Transportation Performance Management into the transportation planning process.

#### **Project 9.1: Vehicle Probe Transportation Dataset and Eastern Transportation Coalition**

Project Description: This is a continuation from FY 21. Vehicle probe transportation data is used to monitor Rhode Island's roadway system's performance. RIDSP and RIDOT will purchase INRIX traffic and travel data through the Eastern Transportation Coalition pooled fund (see paragraph below). The INRIX data provides a comprehensive and consistent data source for traffic and travel times on Rhode Island's roadways. INRIX aggregates GPS probe data from a wide array of commercial vehicle fleets, connected cars and mobile apps. INRIX, through its partnership with the University of Maryland Center for Advanced Transportation Technology Laboratory (CATT Lab), operates the Regional Integrated Transportation Information System (RITIS) portal that staff will use to analyze, visualize, and understand road performance and state traffic signals based on the INRIX data. INRIX's real-time data will help staff actively measure, report, and manage traffic. Use of the historic INRIX data will help establish federally required performance targets, report on targets, and better plan for future transportation projects and programs. This information can also be analyzed to provide a variety of information about the transportation system including the general origins and destinations of travel, the travel times across a segment of road, the speed of travel incidents, and historical travel times. These datasets are important for operations, project planning, and project scoping activities. They are also invaluable to long-range planning, congestion management, transit planning, land use planning, bicycle planning, pedestrian planning, and travel demand modeling conducted by RISDP. The data outputs produced have potential applications for many state and municipal agencies beyond those listed.

This project also provides funding to support the State's annual membership in the Eastern Transportation Coalition (formerly known as the I-95 Corridor Coalition). The Coalition is an alliance of state transportation agencies, toll authorities, and related organizations, including public safety, that provides a forum for key decision and policy makers to address transportation management and operations issues of common interest. Rhode Island's participation in the Coalition helps to develop consensus, cooperation, coordination, and communication with other member states.

Benefits of membership in the Coalition include:

- Greater efficiency through coordination
- Mutual support and technical assistance
- Opportunities to learn from each other's experiences
- Shared research and development and field testing
- Access to a network of peers

Membership also allows the State access to the "pooled fund," which permits the Division to purchase data at the membership rate.

#### Project Agency Lead: RIDOT

#### Partner Agencies: RIDSP

Contact: Pamela Cotter, Christos Xenophontos, Linsey Callaghan

Schedule for Completion: Ongoing effort that will continue through the duration of the UPWP.

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

Transportation Dataset from INRIX and University of Maryland's CATT Lab's Regional Integrated Transportation Information Systems > Data for all federally mandated RIDOT performance reporting

### **Project Cost (other than staff time):** \$883,367

(\$385,747 FHWA; \$80,237 RIDSP; \$96,437 RIDOT; \$320,947 Other)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- RIPTA, RIDOT and RIDSP staff all use data regularly to help with planning, traffic management and operations.
- ✓ Traffic signalization reports also now added to suite and being evaluated by RIDOT TMC for accuracy.
- ✓ Discussions ongoing for research project to use a cloud system to harvest INRIX and WAZE data for RIDOT traffic analysis.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Training scheduled to institute cloud pilot.
- ✓ Traffic signalization reports updated and redesigned for better communication.
- ✓ Staff continues to utilize dashboard for reporting.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Research started on new platform tools and vendors
- $\checkmark$  Traffic signalization inventory increased

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Staff continue to utilize dashboard for reporting
- ✓ Leadership working with TETC on getting other data such as bike/ped or truck O/D

## **Project 9.2: Travel Demand Model Update and Maintenance**

**Project Description:** Update and maintenance of the Rhode Island Statewide Model (RISM) is an ongoing function of the RIDSP along with its partner agencies and support from hired consultants. This includes data inputs/outputs, enhancements, and updates to the RISM. For FY 22, efforts will focus on:

- Utilize Vehicle Probe Traffic and Travel Data (see Project 9.1) This data provides the state with important information about travel speed, road counts, and travel demand.
- Incorporation of RIDOT Transit Rail Ridership Survey Information Data from the RIDOT transit ridership survey of rail passengers on the MBTA line in Rhode Island will be incorporated into the RISM to improve the accuracy of the model, especially when combined with the data from the vehicle phone probe.

Project Agency Lead: RIDSP

Partner Agencies: RIDOT, RIPTA, RIDEM

Contact: Benjamin Jacobs, Vincent Flood

**Schedule for Completion:** This project is an ongoing effort that will continue through the duration of the UPWP.

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

Fully functional transportation planning level use of RISM

**Project Cost (other than staff time):** \$241,249 (\$161,637 FHWA; \$31,362 FTA; \$48,250 RIDSP)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Completed contracting procedures
- ✓ Completed Annual Report

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Began Stakeholder interviews
- ✓ Held internal meetings to discuss stakeholders and needs

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Completed Stakeholder Interviews
- ✓ Drafted Memo Summarizing Interviews for Stakeholders

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Final edits on Memo are ongoing due to staff availability
- ✓ Report on Model updates started

#### Project 9.3: Data Quality Control

**Project Description:** This is a continuation from FY 19. This project will purchase and incorporate 1Spatial software into RIDOT's operations. 1Spatial software uniquely fills a niche in the geospatial industry by enabling evaluation of proposed changes to a master dataset prior to acceptance. When an issue with a proposed change is found, the data entry person is presented with rules that are not met and a recommended remedy. FHWA purchased 1Spatial software and contracted with them to develop a state DOT data upload acceptance test and quality control toolset. RIDOT's 2017 submission was chosen as the pilot test dataset. When complete, FHWA will freely give the developed 1Spatial testing rules to any state DOT that also purchases 1Spatial software. This would enable RIDOT to run proposed HPMS submissions through tests and resolve issues prior to submission. RIDOT's Office of Transportation Information Systems envisions embedding this functionality in every data maintenance workflow to enforce database integrity at the point of entry.

#### Project Agency Lead: RIDOT

Contact: Steve Kut

**Schedule for Completion:** This project is an ongoing effort that will continue through the duration of the UPWP.

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

> 1Spatial software incorporated into RIDOT's operations

Project Cost (other than staff time): \$100,000 (\$80,000 FHWA; \$20,000 RIDOT)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ FME server licensing request being processed
- ✓ RIDOT staff utilizing FME workbenches to filter, transform, and publish data views, including the FFY2022-2031 STIP Project Dashboard.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ISpatial 1Integrate Software installed and configured in Rhode Island State Enterprise GIS environment.
- ✓ FHWA HPMS rules deployed to 1Integrate.
- ✓ Initiated process to conflate 2021 HPMS submission to new ALRS for inclusion in Road and Highways.

#### Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Accepted delivery of HPMS conflation tools and deployed within State's 1Integrate environment.
- ✓ Initiated activity to develop cost estimating engine for project estimates within 1Integrate.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Held meetings with 1Spatial to finalize scope for financial readiness rules.
- ✓ Provided 1Spatial with source data for cost estimation engine

#### Project 9.4: Environmental Data Center Partnership - RIGIS Geospatial Database

**Project Description:** Utilizing the University of Rhode Island's Environmental Data Center (URI EDC) as a subcontractor, this project will continue to maintain and update the Rhode Island Geographic Information System consortium's data distribution clearinghouse (www.rigis.org). The primary function of this project is to continue developing new data and map services developed by RIGIS partners and to maintain the underlying software and hardware systems that support the clearinghouse. With the creation of many new hosted feature services within ArcGIS Online, it is now possible to create more advanced web mapping applications featuring RIGIS data and imagery. These web maps and web mapping applications will continue to allow users of all skill levels to access and interact with popular RIGIS datasets such as RIDOT roads, sea level rise datasets, and RIPTA bus stops and routes. The geospatial data distributed by RIGIS supports numerous ongoing transportation and economic development planning initiatives.

## Project Agency Lead: RIDSP and URI EDC

#### Contact: Vincent Flood

**Schedule for Completion:** This project is an ongoing effort that will continue through the duration of the UPWP.

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

- Outreach Survey Report
- Story Maps/Journals and apps featuring RIGIS map services
- > Approximately twenty-five new or updated datasets reviewed, processed, and published
- > Four quarterly updates of the publicly available Esri file geodatabases

- > Four quarterly blog posts summarizing RIGIS-distributed datasets
- Responses to requests for technical assistance
- Approximately ten metadata records updated
- Reliable access to the RIGIS data distribution website

### **Project Cost (other than staff time):** \$75,000 (\$14,200 FHWA; \$45,801 FTA; \$14,999 URI)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Installed, configured, tested, and successfully migrated to a new network attached storage device.
- Consolidated RIGIS data managed by the URI EDC to a single file server, simplifying data management and server administration.
- Approximately 18 TB of free storage are now readily available for future new RIGIS data contributions.
  - This new file server is currently backed up locally on a nightly basis.
  - Data backup strategy will be revisited as a scheduled activity during Quarter 2.
- The new local Universal Naming Convention (UNC) path for this new file server triggered a necessary cascade of updates:
  - Approximately 100 mosaic dataset file paths.
  - Approximately 150 Esri map, image, and feature services locally hosted by the URI EDC featuring RIGIS data were republished.
- ✓ Initiated and completed RIGIS Twitter account overhaul.
  - Reactivated @RIGIS (<u>https://twitter.com/RIGIS</u>).
  - Developed new policy statement for usage of this account.
  - Deleted old Tweets following this new policy statement.
  - Removed all conversation threads.
  - All notifications are disabled with the exception of email notifications for direct messages to this account.
- ✓ Continued developing Esri ArcGIS Online StoryMaps that facilitate access to RIGIS data.
  - Rhode Island's Imagery Library
    - Added Spring 2021 imagery to StoryMap collection.
    - Expected to be publicly shared in Quarter 2 after final internal review.
- ✓ Rhode Island's Elevation and Bathymetry Library
  - Began creating this StoryMap with relevant data
  - This draft app is not yet currently available to the general public.
- ✓ Began evaluating a potential transition of the RIGIS informational website (<u>https://info.rigis.org</u>) to Esri ArcGIS Hub.
- ✓ Submitted three monthly technical assistance summaries that documented a total of 10 fulfilled requests.
- ✓ Attended quarterly RIGIS Executive Committee meeting on September 30, 2021.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Published draft image services featuring new 4-band, 1-ft resolution orthophotographs flown in June 2021, contributed to RIGIS by the Rhode Island Eelgrass Mapping Task Force.
- ✓ Successfully evaluated, tested, and began implementing the use of Google Drive as an offsite backup destination that could be tapped in the event of a local catastrophic data loss.

- ✓ On an alternate enterprise GIS server array, successfully tested the upgrade process from Esri ArcGIS Enterprise 10.8.1 to 10.9, and then installing the subsequent 10.9.1 patch.
- ✓ Successfully implemented the mitigation scripts released by Esri to address the CVE-2021-45105 infinite recursion denial-of-service attack approach against Log4j.
- ✓ Added new GIS Technical Standards and Best Practices Survey Result documents to the RIGIS informational website (<u>https://info.rigis.org</u>) on behalf of the RIGIS Executive Committee.
- ✓ Began migrating the content from RIGIS informational website (<u>https://info.rigis.org</u>) to Esri ArcGIS Hub. Standalone files (e.g., PDF files) have been copied to Google Drive, which will ultimately host these files behind-the-scenes for the new ArcGIS Hub site. Graphic design of this new ArcGIS Hub site is also in progress.
- ✓ The URI EDC and the RIGIS Executive Committee's Outreach Working Group agreed to collaborate on the next issue the RIGIS newsletter using Esri ArcGIS Experience Builder or StoryMaps as the publication platform on a trial basis.
- ✓ Began evaluating methods for recording and publishing brief videos demonstrating how to access and use resources available from RIGIS. The two most likely candidate are taking advantage of URI's subscription to Panopto (<u>https://www.panopto.com</u>) or YouTube. URI EDC is currently leaning towards Panopto as it's used extensively to support remote learning activity here at the University.
- ✓ Submitted three monthly technical assistance summaries that documented a total of 10 fulfilled requests.
- ✓ No URI EDC staff were available to attend the quarterly RIGIS Executive Committee meeting on December 16, 2021.
- ✓ Metrics:
  - 0 new or updated datasets published
  - 10 fulfilled technical assistance requests
  - o 2 new or updated map, image, feature, and hosted services published
  - 0 metadata records updated
  - 0 ArcGIS Online records updated
  - Website statistics per Google Analytics:
  - RIGIS data clearinghouse (<u>https://www.rigis.org</u>)
  - 6,652 total users
  - 11,469 sessions
  - 43,322 page views
  - Average 3.78 pages viewed per session
  - RIGIS information website (<u>https://info.rigis.org</u>)
  - 490 total users
  - 583 sessions
  - 1,058 page views
  - Average 1.81 pages viewed per session
  - ArcGIS Enterprise service statistics per ArcGIS Monitor:
  - 8,443,616 transactions
  - Most popular services:
- ✓ Fall 2020 Digital Aerial Photographs, WGS84 Web Mercator (EPSG 102700) version
- ✓ Spring 2021 Digital Aerial Photographs, WGS84 Web Mercator (EPSG 102700) version
- ✓ Spring 2021 Digital Aerial Photographs, NAD83 RI State Plane feet (EPSG 3438) version

#### **Quarter 2 Explanation of Project Delay**

- ✓ The installation of the ArcGIS Enterprise 10.9 and subsequent 10.9.1 patch have been postponed until at least February 2022 in order to accommodate another URI EDC project requirement that uses this same enterprise system.
- ✓ Delivery of the new Summer 2021 leaf-on aerial photograph collection contributed by RIDOT was postponed due to a failed hard drive that was provided by the vendor.

#### Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ New 2022 statewide lidar data acquisition opportunity.
- ✓ In early February 2022, the URI EDC was unexpectedly notified by the RI USGS Liaison that the USGS National Geospatial Program and USDA NRCS Farm Production and Conservation were interested in partnering to fully fund and collect statewide lidar through the USGS 3D Elevation Program (3DEP).
- ✓ The URI EDC immediately reconnected and extensively coordinated with RIGIS partners including RIDOA, RIDOT, RIDEM, RICRMC and RI NRCS.
- Received delivery of new 2020 statewide land use/cover and impervious surfaces datasets. Began data review process, which, to date, have consisted primarily of metadata record corrections and improvements.
- ✓ Developed and began enacting a plan to gradually transition the principal role of the RIGIS Data Management team, the RIGIS Data Manager, from Gregory Bonynge to Aimee Mandeville.
- ✓ Successfully designed and implemented a plan to migrate the former RIGIS-L email listserv from the now retired URI LISTSERV service to a URI-managed Google Groups instance.
- ✓ Completed a draft RIGIS Google Group usage policy.
- ✓ Updated the draft "Rhode Island's Imagery Library" StoryMap with information about the 2021 aerial photo collections.
- ✓ Posted an updated 5-year Memorandum of Understanding between the RIGIS Executive Committee and the RI Society of Professional Land Surveyors.
- ✓ Began researching how to make RIGIS "data collection" ArcGIS Hub pages discoverable by using the default search engine used by <u>https://www.rigis.org</u>.
- ✓ Completed draft redesign the info.rigis.org website to ArcGIS Hub.
- ✓ Met in-person with staff from the Division of Statewide Planning on March 11, 2022.
- ✓ Submitted three monthly technical assistance summaries that documented a total of 20 fulfilled requests.
- ✓ Participated in the quarterly RIGIS Executive Committee meeting on March 17, 2022.
- ✓ Participated in the RIGIS User Group meeting on March 24, 2022.

#### **Quarter 3 Explanation of Project Delay**

- ✓ The installation of the ArcGIS Enterprise 10.9 and subsequent 10.9.1 patch have been postponed until at least May 2022 in order to accommodate another URI EDC project requirement that uses this same enterprise system.
- ✓ To accommodate the time necessary to transition the new RIGIS Data Manager role, Development and publication of a new image service featuring digital elevation data derived from the 2011 Northeast Lidar Project has been postponed until at least May 2022.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Four new datasets published:
  - Land Use and Land Cover (2020) (including custom symbology provided as an Esri ArcGIS layer (.lyr) file)

- 2020 Impervious Surfaces
- Wood / Pawcatuck National Wild and Scenic Rivers System
- Underground Storage Tank Locations (2018)
- ✓ Created a new gallery on the RIGIS DATA HUB highlighting the most recently published datasets.
- ✓ Began processing new Spring leaf-off 2022 aerial photograph collection contributed by RIDOT.
  - RIDOT discovered a mosaicking issue in the northern part of the state. More image tiles were also delivered by the vendor than expected. Processing has been paused until RIDOT and the URI EDC learns if updated deliverables will be shared by the vendor.
- ✓ Met with representatives from RIDOT and RI E 9-1-1 on April 28, 2022, regarding how more frequent RI E 9-1-1 data contributions might be accomplished in partnership with RIDOT (data intake and processing) and the URI EDC (publication).
  - URI EDC shared its RI E 9-1-1 data crosswalk files with RIDOT. The plan is for RIDOT to eventually adapt this workflow for use with the Safe Software FME platform.
- ✓ WordPress version of Info.rigis.org was retired. Info.rigis.org is hosted on ArcGIS HUB with links to documents and user group presentations on Google drive.
  - Twitter policy shared on info.rigis.
  - Group policy shared on info.rigis.
- ✓ Shared Rhode Island Imagery Library StoryMap to RIGIS.org
- ✓ Fixed HTTP issues in AGOL. Many SPFNAD83.zip files unable to download due to http. Changed the record in metadata on AGOL to HTTPS.
- ✓ Data collections pages now available via search due to new HUB updates.
- ✓ Submitted three monthly technical assistance summaries that documented a total of 10 fulfilled requests.
- ✓ Participated in the quarterly RIGIS Executive Committee meeting on June 16, 2022.
- ✓ Metrics:
- 4 new or updated datasets published
- 10 fulfilled technical assistance requests
- o 3 new or updated map, image, feature, and hosted services published
- 0 metadata records updated
- ~75 ArcGIS Online records updated

#### **Project 9.5: Environmental Resiliency Tool**

**Project Description:** This is a continuation from FY 19. The development of the Environmental Resiliency Tool will allow RIDOT, other State agencies, and local governments to assess the unique environmental risks associated with asset management in a coastal state. The effort will focus on assessing these risks through the use of GIS models and overlaying the data with asset inventories, the Transportation Asset Management Plan, and the Ten-Year State Transportation Improvement Plan processes. RIDOT will work with State agency partners and other subject matter experts to produce three key deliverables: 1) an easy-to-use, interactive tool that will allow users to seamlessly identify environmental and natural risks and overlay them with other asset management information;

2) a detailed, instructive guide that will help users implement smart, resilient policies and asset management strategies, and 3) a template for RI municipalities to utilize during the STIP project proposal phase. The tool will incorporate GIS models of environmental data into various data management systems driving the RIDOT's asset management coordination and STIP planning process. Initially, the tool will provide information on coastal flooding impacts to transportation assets resulting from storms and sea-level rise, with additional risks added as data becomes available. The guide will inform decision making, provide users with direction to utilize that information, including best practices for asset maintenance, policies for how to integrate various levels of risk, and recommended adjustments to long-term asset management plans and project designs. Finally, the template will ensure that all future applicants proposing new STIP projects complete a mandatory set of sea-level rise and storm surge analyses to inform the designs and viability assessments of their proposals.

Project Agency Lead: RIDOT Office of Sustainability and Innovation

**Partner Agencies:** RIDSP, RIDEM, RI Executive Climate Change Coordinating Council (EC4), RI Emergency Management Agency, University of Rhode Island, RI Coastal Resources Management Council, RI Infrastructure Bank

#### Contact: Pam Cotter

Schedule for Completion: This project will continue through the duration of the UPWP.

#### **Products / Deliverables:**

- Interactive tool that will allow users to seamlessly identify environmental and natural risks and overlay them with other asset management information
- A detailed, instructive guide that will help users implement policies and asset management strategies
- > A template for RI municipalities to utilize during the STIP project proposal phase

#### Project Cost (other than staff time): \$300,000 (\$50,000 RIDOT; \$250,000 other)

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- RIDOT and Town of Warren have agreed to do a joint pilot project using ERT and related funding to research roadway mitigation as part of the town's <u>Market to Metacom</u> resiliency project.
- ✓ Consultants from the town and RIDOT have met, toured the project and site and shared research to pursue options.
- ✓ Biweekly meetings held to update project.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Meetings among RIDOT, consultants and town continue.
- ✓ RIDOT working with FHWA-RI to host a peer exchange with other states on roadway mitigation practices.
- ✓ RIDOT continues to educate cities and towns in Rhode Island whose TIP projects face sealevel rise.
- ✓ Met with Barrington and Bristol to discuss projects those towns wanted to move forward without considering SLR conditions. Discussion alternatives now.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Additional meetings with Town of Warren to advance pilot project on roadway mitigation at Market and Child Streets
- ✓ Consultant developed decision matrix for alternatives to full pavement replacement
- ✓ Working to develop modeling and seek additional grant funding to expand the RIDOT's resiliency planning efforts

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Closing out project with decision matrix for Town of Warren to consider various solutions.
- ✓ Investigating pervious pavement solutions along Market Street
- ✓ Will meet with town and proceed beyond design in the near future

#### Special Task 9h: Transportation Performance Management Dashboard

Develop and maintain a dashboard of federally required, and State priority, performance measures designed to help benchmark and track the State's progress in achieving the goals and targets outlined in the *Long-Range Transportation Plan: Moving Forward RI 2040*. The dashboard will focus on Transportation Performance Management, and 2-year and 4-year targets as required by FAST-Act reporting guidelines. The 2-year and 4-year targets are required in the areas of roadway safety, infrastructure condition, and highway performance. State priority performance areas will be included in a second phase. The dashboard will be updated annually with compiled data, or relevant web links. Staff may also work with RIDOT and DOA Information Technology resources as needed to develop the ESRI map online.

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Related performance management and target setting work was completed with the adoption of the FFY 2022-2031 STIP Performance Management (see Section 1- background).
- ✓ Content for a web-based dashboard has been developed in draft form. Interim updates of progress on 2-and 4-year performance measures remains to be integrated into dashboard text.
- ✓ Text development, web design and posting to the website will continue in Quarter 2.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ The Division of Statewide Planning's Transportation Performance Management webpage content was completed in Quarter 2 with information and links to performance measures for Roadway Safety, Bridge & Pavement Condition, System Performance, Transit Asset Management and Transit Safety. This content will be updated periodically as new targets are developed and to report on annual and 2- and 4-year progress.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ This was completed in Q2 however content was added to RIDSP's Transportation Performance Management webpage. The added content included the baselines and targets in the areas of Roadway Safety, Bridge and Pavement Condition, System Performance, Transit Asset Management, and Transit Safety.

#### Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ This was completed in Q2 however content was added to RIDSP's Transportation Performance Management webpage. The added content included the baselines and targets in the areas of Roadway Safety, Bridge and Pavement Condition, System Performance, Transit Asset Management, and Transit Safety.

## Activity 11 – Title VI Compliance and Environmental Justice

**Objective:** To prevent discrimination in the State's planning processes so that all residents of the State are treated fairly and ensure that all provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 are implemented. To ensure Environmental Justice– meaning no group of people, including any racial, ethnic, or socioeconomic group bears a disproportionate share of the negative environmental consequences resulting from federal, State, local, or Tribal policies– is a component of planning processes. To ensure that all Rhode Islanders regardless of race, ethnic origin, income, age, mobility impairment, or geographic location have the opportunity to be involved in the planning process, are treated fairly, and are equitably served by the actions, plans, programs, and projects of the Metropolitan Planning Organization.

#### Special Task 11.1: Update the MPO's Public Participation Plan

In light of COVID-19, public participation has transitioned to a more online platform. This special task will provide an <u>update</u> on new methods of public engagement that are being utilized and implemented to conform to the new State law and regulations that have been put in place as a result of COVID-19. Examples of virtual outreach methods include: ZOOM, Smart Comment, and how additional virtual platforms are being utilized.

#### Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ A Statement on Virtual Public Outreach in Response to COVID-19 was added to the Public Participation Plan as an appendix. The statement describes how the COVID-19 pandemic necessitated the immediate use of virtual and online public meetings. However, while public meetings were held online for over a year as part of social distancing protocol, public bodies have resumed in-person meetings. With the return to business as usual, it has become apparent that virtual meetings could continue to be beneficial and may be necessary at times, such as in emergency situations when in-person meetings and events are not possible or practicable. In these instances, virtual techniques such as remote or hybrid meetings may take precedence. The continued evolution of online platforms for virtual public outreach may also provide new opportunities for the MPO to expand the reach and accessibility of its public outreach efforts. Therefore, as state law allows, there will be flexibility in selecting online, in-person, or meetings in combination thereof based on the context of the setting and/or audience in order to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of the overall public outreach program. RISPC will also make every effort to ensure that people and groups are not disadvantaged by their level of access to online outreach platforms.
- $\checkmark$  This task is complete.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

 $\checkmark$  This task is complete as noted in Q1.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

 $\checkmark$  This task is complete as noted in Q1.

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

 $\checkmark$  This task is complete as noted in Q1.

## Activity 13 – Support to Other State Agencies and Municipalities

**Objective:** To ensure that residents and businesses have convenient transportation options that are coordinated with opportunities such as access to good jobs, affordable housing, and quality schools, while also balancing environmental sustainability by providing technical assistance and training to State, local, and other agencies in support of the SGP.

Develop and deliver training and technical assistance to ensure that municipal boards and commissions, elected officials, and professional staff responsible for municipal land use and transportation planning will have the knowledge and skills needed related to conducting effective land use reviews and writing sound decisions consistent with Rhode Island General Laws to effectively carry out their responsibilities.

## **Project 13.1: Local Active Transportation Technical Enhancements**

**Project Description:** This project is a continuation from FY 20. It enables municipalities to access planning, transportation, and design expertise to define multimodal transportation problems, such as traffic control, intermodal connectivity and access, safety, parking, or other issue(s), explore alternatives, and create conceptual plans to support economic development efforts in their communities.

RIDSP will contract with planning, transportation, and design consultants for technical review/evaluation of the problem and drafting a plan for the chosen project. In addition, RIDSP will rely on and coordinate with local municipal officials to schedule meetings with staff and relevant stakeholders. The technical assistance team, in collaboration with the municipality, will develop a report with concept renderings that defines and evaluates alternatives and next steps for the municipality, and may provide the foundation for a STIP project application.

Project Agency Lead: RIDSP

Partner Agencies: City of Newport

Contact: Roberta Groch

**Schedule for Completion:** This project is an ongoing effort that will continue through the duration of the UPWP.

## **Products / Deliverables:**

Conceptual plan and/or solutions to transportation issues that affect municipal economic development efforts.

#### Project Cost (other than staff time): \$395,000

(\$144,000 FHWA; \$36,000 FTA; \$215,000 municipal match)

#### Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Completed twenty in-person and virtual Stakeholder Interviews that are part of an Existing Conditions analysis. Planning Staff from the City of Newport and the Rhode Island Division of Statewide Planning participated in all twenty of these interviews, along with the consultant team.
- ✓ Held a series of eight public outdoor pop-up events throughout the months of August to September to interact with the public and solicit feedback on the transportation system for the Existing Conditions report. Pop up events were held at different locations across the City and in coordination with events such as the weekly Farmer's Markets, the Newport Folk Festival, the Audrain Newport Concours and Motor Week, and the Festival Italiana. These were the major components of Phase 1 of our Public Outreach, along with the Stakeholder Interviews and the interactive project website.
- ✓ An interactive mapping platform was opened on the project website at KeepNewportMoving.com for the public to identify and comment on major transportation issues by mode and to suggest potential fixe/solutions to transportation problems.
- ✓ Project Management Committee continued to meet with the consultant team on a bi-weekly basis to discuss progress with plan components.
- ✓ As of September 30, the Newport Transportation Master Plan project is twenty-five percent complete. The consultant team is working on the Draft Existing Conditions report for the Project Management Committee to review.

#### Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ For the months of October December 2021, the consultant worked on and completed the Draft Existing Conditions Report and the Appendix Reports for the Public Involvement Summary, Stakeholder Interview Report, Safety Analysis, Traffic Congestion Analysis, Parking and Freight Analysis, and Sign Inventory.
- ✓ The Draft Existing Conditions Report and Appendices were submitted to the Project Management Team on November 1, 2021, for initial review and comment.
- ✓ Committee member comments were submitted to Toole Design and the Existing Conditions Report and Appendices were completed. The reports will be posted to the project website at the end of January 2022 along with a Press Release explaining the finding in the Draft reports.
- ✓ In December and January, Toole Design presented some initial scenario maps, network development, and design guidance and street typologies for consideration as well as began the discussion of Phase 2 Public Outreach slated for Spring of 2022.
- ✓ As of December 30, 2021, the Newport Transportation Master Plan project is 50% percent complete. Seven Invoices have been submitted and processed to date representing just over 50% of project spending. The consultant team is working on Phase 2 project materials and outreach planning.

## Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ Work has begun on the Network and Policy Recommendations for the Newport Transportation Master Plan which includes recommendation development, scenario planning, mapping networks (bike, pedestrian, park zones), and policy development.

- ✓ Phase 2 Outreach planning has been completed and a series of Phase 2 Outreach events are slated for the month of May to include two in-person Open House forums the third week of May to be held at Pell Elementary School and the Newport Public Library. Additionally, pop up table events will be held on Saturday May 7 and 14<sup>th</sup> at the Newport Farmer's Market.
- ✓ A press release announcing the schedule of Phase 2 Outreach Events will be released on April 27<sup>th</sup> with a coordinated announcement made at the Newport Town Council meeting that night.
- ✓ Invoices 8 and 9 were processed this quarter, and a total of \$235,288,20 has been spent to date on the contract of \$394,968. We have spent just over 60% of project funds.
- ✓ The project is proceeding on time and on budget with an expected completion date in September.

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- Phase 2 Public Outreach for the Newport TMP was completed on June 6<sup>th</sup> with a final open house workshop at the regularly scheduled Newport Planning Board meeting
- ✓ Toole Design Group has presented the first Draft of the Newport Transportation Master Plan to the project management team on Monday July 25<sup>th</sup>.
- ✓ The project management team is now reviewing the Draft Plan and will provide comments to Toole Design by August 12.
- ✓ In early September the Draft Newport TMP will be release to the public on the City of Newport website and through a press release and public comment on the Plan Draft will begin. Newport staff will convene a series of meetings with City committees and elected officials to go over the Draft Newport TMP in August and September.
- ✓ Invoices 10, 11, and 12 were processed this quarter, and a total of \$291,544.48 has been spent to date on the contract of \$394,968. We have spent 74% of project funds.
- ✓ The project is proceeding on time and on budget with an expected completion date for the Plan Draft in September and final adoption of the plan by the City of Newport and project closeout with the Toole Design Group to occur in late Fall (November/December).

## 13.2 Support from Water Resources Board

**Project Description:** This project funds staff time of technical experts on the staff of the Water Resources Board (WRB), which has been merged with the RIDSP. The WRB has staff funded through State General Revenue, but their technical expertise is a complement to the existing RIDSP staff. WRB staff has particular expertise in data analysis and mapping, which will be used to develop various plans.

Project Agency Lead: RIDSP

Contact Person: Meredith Brady, Kathleen Crawley

Schedule for Completion: Ongoing – throughout the year

**Products** / **Deliverables:** GIS mapping, data analysis, water-related review and updates to State Guide Plan elements and other plans, such as the *Long-Range Transportation Plan*, *Land Use 2050*, climate sustainability and resiliency efforts, and other work products of the RIDSP.

#### **Project Cost (other than staff time): \$28,843**

**Funding Sources:** FHWA. It is important to note that, although we do not show the State funds in the UPWP, State sources are paying 90% of the personnel costs for these positions.

Quarter 1 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Utilized WRB staff as a resource for several mapping efforts and to cross-check Transportation Improvement Program data.
- ✓ Provided training opportunities for WRB staff in data issues surrounding Census and transportation databases.

Quarter 2 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Training continues to be provided to WRB on transportation systems and topics.
- ✓ WRB staff utilized to assist with webpage updates, review of available data for community reporting, integration of WRB processes with Statewide Planning process and procedures, data inventory and storage.

Quarter 3 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

- ✓ Utilized WRB staff for census-related data mapping efforts.
- ✓ WRB staff participated in training sessions on transportation and transit topics throughout the quarter.

Quarter 4 Accomplishments (or explanation of project delay)

✓ WRB staff worked on developing databases that will benefit Land Use 2050 and also feed mapping efforts that will be coordinated through RIGIS.

**PART II – FINANCIAL REPORTS** 

Statewide Planning

٢

Hours Expended by Task Number

As of June 2022 100% of Fiscal Year 2022

Task Title		Federai
Activity	Number	
Percent	Expended	
Hours	Expended	
No. of Hours	Assigned in the	Work Program

				 17					1217											
	EFSB	100%																100%		
DURCES	WRB	100%									- II									
FUNDING SOURCES	RI AIR		100%																	
Ľ	FHWA	80%	20%	63%	60%	60%	20%	60%	80%	80%	43%	65%	50%	65%	55%	50%			65%	60%
	FTA	80%	20%	17%	20%	20%	%09	20%	%0	10%	7%	15%	10%	15%	15%				15%	15%
	SPP		100%	20%	20%	20%	20%	20%	20%	30%	50%	20%	40%	20%	30%	20%	100%		20%	25%
Task Title		Federai	State	Management and Administration	Activity 2 State Transportation Improvement Program	Activity 3 State/Regional Transportation Operations, Management, and Planning Coor.	Activity 4 Transit Planning	Activity 5 Freight Planning implementation	Activity 6 Transportation Planning, Bicycle and Pedestrian Mobility	Long Range Land Use and Transportation Planning	Activity 8 Intergovernmental Coordination	Planning Information and Education	68.7% Activity 10 Public Information and Outreach	46.2% Activity 11 Title VI and Environmental Justice	51.0% Activity 12 Climate Change, Resiliency, Adaptation and Mitigation	67.2% Activity 13 Support to Other State Agencies and Municipalities	Activity 14 Special Projects and Activities Not Federally Funded	39.0% Activity 15 Energy Facility Siting Board	57.5% Activity 16 Census and Data	ICAP ( Paid Leave - See Appendix D)
Activity	Number			Activity 1						Activity 7	Activity 8	Activity 9	Activity 10	Activity 11	Activity 12	Activity 13	Activity 14	Activity 15	Activity 16	ICAP
Percent	pa			68.3%	64.0%	34.4%	11.4%	59.3%	32.5%	41.5%	34.4%	49.2%	68.7%	46.2%	51.0%	67.2%	19.5%	39.0%	57.5%	50.6%
Hours ]	ded			5,639.3	1,819.5	1,057.6	51.5	975.3	728.3	1,147.0	540.5	3,067.3	564.4	615.4	911.0	408.7	10.8	154.2	848.6	3,322.6
No. of Hours F	Assigned in the E			8,254.0	2,845.0	3,078.0	452.0	1,644.0	2,241.0	2,761.0	1,573.0	6,239.0	821.0	1,331.0	1,787.0	608.0	55.0	395.0	1,476.0	6,570.0

42,130.0 21,861.7

52%

#### Statewide Planning Dept. of Administration Expenditures by Funding Source June FY 2022

 $r \to -r$ 

Account Number	Account Name	FY 2022 Budget	YTD Budget	YTD Expense	Variance									
1170102/1165101	Systems Planning	775,436	775,436.00	659,283	116,153									
1165101	EFSB	41,872	41,872.00	12,707	29,165									
	CBO	21,942	21,942.00	22,649	(707)									
1171101	FTA	493,354	493,354.00	336,305	157,049									
1170101	FHWA	1,989,296	1,989,296.00	1,637,857	351,439									
	Sub Total	3,321,900	3,321,900	2,668,802	653,098									
	Contractual and Pass Thru Grants													
Match	OTHER	785,947	785,947.00	276,000	509,947 *									
Match	URI	14,999	14,999.00	12,000	2,999 *									
Match	RIPTA	90,000	90,000.00	33,000	57,000 *									
Match	RIDOT	319,545	319,545.00	142,339	177,206 *									
1165101	SWP	264,559	264,559.00	69,754	194,805									
1171101	FTA	560,378	560,378.00	202,139	358,239									
1170101	FHWA	1,883,934	1,883,934.00	865,019	1,018,915									
	Sub Total	2,708,871	2,708,871	1,136,912	1,571,959									
	Grand Total	6,030,771	6,030,771	3,805,714	2,225,057									

\* Match component not included in totals

#### Statewide Planning Expense Distribution - Breakout Fiscal Year 2022 As of June 30, 2022

		Total		1171101	1170101			1170102	1165101
		Total	0.000			FFOD	CDO		
Account #	_		SPP	FTA	FHWA	EFSB	CBO	SPP Gas Tax	SPP General
611000 Regular Wages	0.652	1,514,271.49	381,211.27	215,265.75	894,749.40	8,282.47	14,762.58	258,812.01	129,399.27
616200 Family Medical Insurance Coverage	0.0012	2,853.37	714.83	406.14	1,689.99	15.24	27.17	414.60	300.23
619000 Family Medical Waiver Bonus		-	-		•			-	1
620100 Payroll Accruals	0.1412	335,746.31	84,111.45	47,788.68	198,855.44	1,793.69	3,197.05	48,784.64	35,326.81
620700 Employees Retirement- State Contribution	0.0008	1,902.25	476.55	270.76	1,126.66	10.16	18.11	276.40	200.15
621110 Social Security (FICA)	0.048	114,134.72	28,593.13	16,245.44	67,599.58	609.75	1,086.82	16,584.01	12,009.11
624110 Medical Insurance	0.0873	207,582.53	52,003.75	29,546.40	122,946.74	1,108.99	1,976.65	30,162.18	21,841.58
					8,168.28	73.68	131.32	2,003.90	1,451.10
624120 Dental Care	0.0058	13,791.28	3,455.00	1,962.99			the second se		
624130 Vision Care	0.0009	2,140.03	536.12	304.60	1,267.49	11.43	20.38	310.95	225.17
624210 Retirees Medical Insurance			-	-	-	-		-	-
625200 Worker's Compensation Payment		-	-		-	-	· • ·	-	
626100 Assessed Fringe	0.0253	60,158.51	15,070.96	8,562.70	35,630.61	321.39	572.84	8,741.16	6,329.80
626300 Retiree Health Insurance	0.0378	89,881.10	22,517.09	12,793.29	53,234.67	480.18	855.87	13,059.91	9,457.18
Total Personnel	1.0003	2,342,461.58	588,690.16	333,146.75	1,385,268.89	12,706.99	22,648.79	379,149.76	216,540.40
		_,,	,		,	<i>.</i>			
637100 Clerical Services									
633001 Training / Education		-							
		(10 000 50)	(10 000 50)						
637300 Other Temporary Services		(10,000.50)	(10,000.50)						
634001 Design/Surveying		-							
631200 Management Consultants		-							
634300 Surveyor Services		-							
634500 Other design, Engineering		-							
641001		-							
641300 Maintenance Repairs: Software		2,689.31	89.31		2,600.00				
641400 Maintenance Repairs: Office Equipment		2,054.40	513.60	308.16	1,232.64				
641600 Maintenance Repairs: Other Equipment		1,665.15	333.03	000120	1,332.12				
		1,005.15	555.05		1,002.12				
643030 Food		4 007 57	441.00	450.00	2.046.28				
643110 Office Supplies: (Less than 5,000)		4,837.57	441.29	450.00	3,946.28				
643120 Computer Supplies		10,176.27	2,035.27		8,141.00				
643150 Program Supplies (Less than 5,000)		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
643200 Dues/Fees		69,539.09	680.80		68,858.29			1	
643300 Subscriptions		187.82	187.82						
645310 Rent		-							
643410 Postage and Postal Services		2,107.00	1,257.00	200.00	650.00				
		2,101.00	1,207.00	200.00	000.00				
643420 Express Delivery		-							
643430 Freight		-							
643440 Central mailing		-							
643614 Other Advertising		•							
643611 Print Advertising		320.64			320.64				
643620 Printing- Outside Vendors									
643700 Miscellaneous Expenses		1,414.76	489.76		925.00				
643710 Staff Training		3,461.92	1,634.08	200.09	1,627.75				
634510 Electricity		-							
643801 Insurance									
		7						1	
660010 Building Renovations and Upgrades		10 141 04	2 642 50		0 400 20				
645510 Rental/Electric		12,141.96	3,642.58		8,499.38				
645310 Rental/Property		100,900.92	30,270.28		70,630.64				
646200 Mileage Allowance-Personal Cars		367.97	45.98		321.99				
646301 Out of State Travel		-							
646310 Out of State Transportation		1,943.71			1,943.71				
646320 Out of State Lodging		166.76			166.76				
646330 Out of State Registration								1	
646340 Out of State Other									
		(1.10)	(1.10)						
646400 Other Travel Costs		(1.10)	(1.10)						
648110 Central Telephone		475.05	451.01						
648200 Telephone Charges		456.36	456.36		c				
648112 ISF Overhead		19,149.61	10,649.61	2,000.00	6,500.00				
649120 Fees- Single Audit		-							
654130 Sub Awards		1,136,912.29	69,753.64	202,139.45	865,019.20				
647900 DOIT Billing		98,976.20	27,111.72		71,864.48				
661605 Furniture/Equipment		-							
661701 Computer Equipment		3,783.91	756.78		3,027.13				
662150 Capital Lease					,				
699200 Authorized Red Balances									
077200 Aumorized Red Balances		-							
Total Non Demonstral		1 463 353 03	140,347.31	205,297.70	1,117,607.01	_	-		
Total Non Personnel		1,463,252.02	140,347.31	203,471.10	1,117,007.01	-			
Crowd Total		3 805 712 40	770 027 47	538,444.45	2,502,875.90	12,706.99	22,648.79		
Grand Total		3,805,713.60	729,037.47	330,444,43	4,004,013.90	14,100.77	22,040.19	I	

r 1

% of Budget ( June 100%)	105 2197	0/17.001	92.08%	54.62%	16.61%	90.67%	51.77%	61.64%	52.68%	71.39%	97.57%	72.68%	76.70%	95.82%	28.59%	43.43%	77.21%	75.74%	77.62%
Total Personel Expended	03 010 103	004,240.09	194,952.44	113,320.89	5,518.18	104,497.16	78,036.69	122,900.02	57,914.09	328,658.45	60,469.60	65,939.56	97,612.83	43,786.48	1,151.85	16,522.39	90,926.73	356,013.62	2,342,461.58
FY 2022 Personel Budget		1 ( 4, 3 3 1	211,730	207,457	33,217	115,256	150,728	199,397	109,929	460,372	61,975	90,726	127,269	45,696	4,029	38,041	117,767	470,072	3,017,992
ber Task Title		Management and Administration	State Transportation Improvement Program	State/Regional Transportation Operations, Management, and Planning Coor.	Transit Planning	Freight Planning Implementation	Transportation Planning, Bicycle and Pedestrian Mobility	Long Range Land Use and Transportation Planning	Intergovernmental Coordination	Planning Information and Education									
Activity Number	:	Activity 1	Activity 2	Activity 3	Activity 4	Activity 5	Activity 6	Activity 7	Activity 8	Activity 9	Activity 10	Activity 11	Activity 12	Activity 13	Activity 14	Activity 15	Activity 16	ICAP	Total

Total